ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COVMM TTEE
March 23, 2006
8:14 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Paul Seaton, Chair
Representative Bob Lynn
Representative Jay Ranras
Representati ve Berta Gardner
Representati ve Max G uenberg

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Carl Gatto, Vice Chair
Representative JimElkins

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 383

"An Act limting notor vehicle dealer charges for fees and
costs; relating to the disclosures required for certain notor
vehi cl e transactions; and requiring consunmers to be informed of
finance charges paid to a notor vehicle dealer by a financing
institution on the sale of a used notor vehicle."

- MOVED CSHB 383( STA) OUT OF COWM TTEE

CS FOR SENATE BILL NO. 86(CRA) (efd fld)

"An  Act relating to the liability of the state and
muni ci palities for attorney fees in certain civil actions and
appeal s. "

- HEARD AND HELD
HOUSE BI LL NO. 354
"An Act relating to qualifications of the adjutant general; and
providing for an effective date."
- Bl LL HEARI NG CANCELED
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 383

SHORT TITLE: MOTOR VEH CLE TRANSACTI ONS
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) GARA

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- March 23, 2006



01/ 20/ 06 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/ 20/ 06 (H) TRA, STA

02/ 07/ 06 (H TRA AT 1:30 PM CAPI TOL 17

02/ 07/ 06 (H -- Meeting Cancel ed --

02/ 09/ 06 (H) TRA AT 1:30 PM CAPI TOL 17

02/ 09/ 06 (H Moved CSHB 383(TRA) Qut of Conmittee
02/ 09/ 06 (H M NUTE( TRA)

02/ 13/ 06 (H) TRA RPT CS(TRA) NT 1DP 4NR

02/ 13/ 06 (H DP: KAPSNER,

02/ 13/ 06 (H NR: SALMON, NEUMAN, GATTO, ELKI NS
03/ 07/ 06 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 07/ 06 (H Heard & Held

03/ 07/ 06 (H M NUTE( STA)

03/ 23/ 06 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: SB 86
SHORT TITLE: STATE/ MUNI LI ABILITY FOR ATTORNEY FEES
SPONSOR(s): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNCR

01/ 31/ 05 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS

01/ 31/ 05 (S) CRA, JUD

02/ 09/ 05 (S) CRA AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

02/ 09/ 05 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 09/ 05 (S) M NUTE( CRA)

04/ 04/ 05 (S) CRA AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

04/ 04/ 05 (S) Moved CSSB 86(CRA) Qut of Committee

04/ 04/ 05 (S) M NUTE( CRA)

04/ 05/ 05 (S) CRA RPT cs 1DP 2DNP 2NR
SAME TI TLE

04/ 05/ 05 (S) NR. STEVENS G STEDMAN

04/ 05/ 05 (S) DP:  WAGONER

04/ 05/ 05 (S) DNP: ELLIS, KOOKESH

04/ 15/ 05 (S) JUD AT 8:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

04/ 15/ 05 (S) Heard & Hel d

04/ 15/ 05 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

04/ 18/ 05 (S) JUD RPT CS(CRA) 3DP 2DNP

04/ 18/ 05 (S) DP: SEEKI NS, THERRI AULT, HUGG NS

04/ 18/ 05 (S) DNP: FRENCH, GUESS

04/ 18/ 05 (S) JUD AT 8:30 AM BUTROVI CH 205

04/ 18/ 05 (S) Moved CSSB 86(CRA) Qut of Committee

04/ 18/ 05 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

05/ 06/ 05 (S) TRANSM TTED TO (H)

05/ 06/ 05 (S) VERS|I ON:  CSSB 86( CRA) ( EFD FLD)

05/ 07/ 05 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS

05/ 07/ 05 (H) STA, JUD

03/ 23/ 06 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

HOUSE STA COW TTEE

- 2- March 23, 2006



W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE LES GARA

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Revi ewed HB 383 as sponsor.

CLYDE (ED) SN FFEN, JR., Assistant Attorney General
Commerci al / Fai r Busi ness Section

G vil Division (Anchorage)

Departnent of Law

JOHN COCK, Legislative Director

Al aska Aut onpbi |l e Associ ation

(No address provi ded)

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the association in
opposition to HB 383.

CRAI G TI LLERY, Deputy Attorney Gener al

Cvil Division

Ofice of the Attorney General

Departnent of Law

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced SB 86 on behalf of the Senate
Rul es Comm ttee, sponsor by request of the governor.

RANDY RUARO, Assistant Attorney General & Legislative Liaison
Legi slation & Regul ati ons Section

Cvil Division (Juneau)

Departnent of Law

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Responded to a question during the hearing
on SB 86.

SCOTT A. BRANDT- ERI CHSEN, Attorney at Law

Ket chi kan Gat eway Borough

Ket chi kan, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of hinself during the
heari ng on SB 86.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR PAUL SEATON called the House State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:14:32 AM Representatives Lynn,
Ranras, Gardner, Guenberg, and Seaton were present at the call
to order.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 23, 2006



HB 383- MOTOR VEHI CLE TRANSACTI ONS

8:15: 09 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that the first order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 383, "An Act I|imting notor vehicle dealer
charges for fees and costs; relating to the disclosures required
for certain notor vehicle transactions; and requiring consumners
to be infornmed of finance charges paid to a notor vehicle dealer
by a financing institution on the sale of a used notor vehicle."

[ Before the commttee was CSHB 383( TRA). ]

The comm ttee took an at-ease from 8:15:49 AMto 8:16: 15 AM

8:16: 28 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LES GARA, Al aska State Legislature, reviewed the
commttee substitute, CSHB 383(TRA), as sponsor. He said there
had been concern raised during the previous neeting s discussion
of the CS [held on 3/7/2006] as to whether the term "negotiated
price" needs to be better defined. He said M. Sniffen, who
runs the [Conmercial/Fair Business] Section of the Ofice of the
Attorney General has responded to that question in a letter
saying he does not feel the phrase needs further clarification
or definition. Anot her question was in regard to the practice
of sone car dealers to inply to the consuner that the bank | oan
they offer reflects only the interest rate the bank is charging,
when in fact the dealer is keeping part of the total percentage.

He said the dealer can keep whatever it wants; the bill just
asks that the dealer inforns the consuner that it wll be
keeping a portion of it. He indicated that is nore obvious when
the I oan conmes fromthe car dealer that the markup will be there

than it is when the loan conmes from a bank that is unaffiliated
with the car dealership. He said there is a possible anendnent
that would say that the dealer reserve part of the bill wll
only apply when the offer in the contract is only comng froma
bank or credit union.

8:19:49 AM
CLYDE (ED) SNI FFEN, JR , Assi st ant At t or ney Ceneral ,
Commercial/Fair Business Section, Cvil D vision (Anchorage),

Department of Law, said he spoke with Representative Gara's
office in regard to the term "negotiated price", and he said
all the attenpts at clarifying the definition nmade the phrase

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- March 23, 2006



nore conplicated than it presently is. He said he thinks nopst
people in the [car] industry know what that phrase neans and it
is clear enough for enforcenent purposes.

8:21:12 AM
MR. SNIFFEN, in response to a query from Representative Ranras,

hi ghli ghted what his thought process had been in trying to cone
up with a better definition of "negotiated price".

8:22:30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS indicated that M. Sniffen's trouble in
[finding the right words] parallels the trouble that the
committee i s having.

8:23:18 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he is less concerned with the
| anguage, "in addition to the advertised or negotiated price",
than with the words, "Additional fees and costs", [on page 1,
line 6]. He directed attention to [page 1, lines 11-13, which
read as follows]:

(b) In this section, "[DEALER] fees or
costs" includes dealer preparation fees, docunent
preparation fees, sur char ges, and other [DEALER-
| MPOSED] fees and costs.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG opined that car dealers are "sharp,
both in the intellectual sense and the bargaining sense of the
connotation of that word." He asked, "How can we be sure that
they won't inpose additional suns in addition to 'fees and
costs.'"

8:24: 29 AM

MR. SNI FFEN replied that he doesn't know that it is possible to
predict what car dealers wll try to do with the |anguage of
bill, but typically, fees and costs are what consuners are
required to pay as part of the autonobile transaction. He said
the bill "gets us 95 percent there" and wll take care of "the
majority of all the transactions."

8: 25: 38 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 23, 2006



CHAI R SEATON asked if M. Sniffen is saying that the fees and
costs should include any additional charges that woul d be added
on by a dealer at the tinme [of the transaction], except for
those that are specifically exenpted fees paid to a state agency
for licensing, registration, and title transfer.

8:26: 22 AM
MR SN FFEN answered that's correct. He sai d:

It's our position that consuners are best served when
t hey understand the price they have to pay for a car,
absent those fees and costs that a dealer actually
pays to the State of Alaska for a title and
regi stration. And that's because sone of these other
fees and costs ... can be confusing and mi sleading to
a consunmer as being costs actually paid to soneone
el se, when in fact they're just cost and fees that the
deal ers keep.

8:27:06 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said he doesn't think the |anguage needs to
be changed, but if the conmmttee wants a change, he suggested
t hat adding the word "charges" woul d be all-enconpassing.

8:27:25 AM

REPRESENTATI VE  GRUENBERG suggested changing the | anguage
starting on page 1, line 13, to read, "and any other fees,
costs, and charges of any kind."

8:27:49 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA recommended the change should be [on page 1,
line 12], to add "charges" after "surcharges".

8:27:58 AM

MR. SNl FFEN sai d he thinks any |anguage that would nake it clear
that fees, costs, and charges include everything other than fees
and costs paid to the for title and registrati on woul d be good.

8:28: 26 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS said, "Do you think we could insert the
word[s] 'and profit' in there also, so that we could let the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 23, 2006



consuners know that the car dealers are there to try to generate
a profit?"

CHAI R SEATON asked Representative Ranras if that is a rhetorica
guesti on.

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS said no. He stated, "W're going over
everything that seens to be involved. Don't we want to make the
consuner aware that we're going to let the dealership generate a
profit in this transaction?”

8:29:09 AM

MR. SNIFFEN said he thinks it is understood by nobst consuners
that car deal ers generate a profit.

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS said he disagrees and he restated his
guesti on.

MR. SNIFFEN said the intent of the bill is not to "let the car
deal ers not naeke a profit,” but rather to disclose all the types
of charges that are added on to a transaction that potentially
could be m sl eading. He said, "I don't know that profit falls
into that category."”

8:30: 01 AM

CHAIR SEATON offered his wunderstanding that "this" wouldn't
elimnate profit; it would just nmean that the profit is also
included in the negotiated price.

8:30: 32 AM

MR. SNI FFEN sai d he believes that is correct.

8:30:42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if the industry has cone up with
anything else that it feels it mght want to or should
legitimately charge that may still be excluded by the |anguage.
He stated that he does not want to be unreasonable to the
industry; he just wants to ensure that the law is drafted as
accurately as possible.

8:31:40 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- March 23, 2006



MR. SNI FFEN responded that he is not aware of anything el se that
needs to be included at this time. He tal ked about the original
intent of the bill and said, "I don't know that we want to get
this portion of the bill headed in a direction it wasn't
intended to head ...."

8:33:17 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked M. Sniffen, "Does this bill require themto
line item out everything they're charging, or does it only
require themto include in the price that they negotiate ... all
the fees that they're going to charge?"

MR. SNIFFEN answered it's the latter. He indicated that the
goal is to have the ampunt the dealer wants to charge - however
that dealer wants to line item those charges - equal the anmount
t he consuner agreed to pay.

8:34:11 AM

CHAI R SEATON said the conmttee was tal king about "profit" and
he thinks the word could be added possibly elsewhere in the
bill, but not on [page 1], Iline 11, because "that's the
definition of 'fees' and 'costs'."

8:34: 35 AM
REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS asked M. Sniffen if he could provide a
definition for the words "advertised" and "negotiated" as they
relate to the bill.
8:34:53 AM
MR. SNI FFEN replied as foll ows:

"Advertised price" is in the statute currently and

there is no definition for that termin the statute
and "negotiated price" does not have a separate

definition as well. The way | understand those terns
to nean: an advertised price is the price that you
advertise for the vehicle. That can include

advertisenment in the newspaper, on the radio, [and] on
your dealership lot, if it's a big postcard or placard
in the wi ndow of the vehicle. It's any price you
advertise to the public in any way .... And then
negotiated price is the price that the consuner agrees
with the dealer to purchase a vehicle for

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 23, 2006



8: 35: 38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS asked for M. Sniffen's interpretation of
t he phrase "advertised or negoti ated".

8:36: 04 AM

MR. SNIFFEN offered his interpretation that if a car dealer
advertises a vehicle for a specific price, that price needs to
include "all the fees discussed in this bill." He continued:

If I go into your dealership and | start negotiating
with you for the purchase of a vehicle and we no
|l onger are looking at the advertised price of the
sales price, but another price, and it's [the] price

that | discussed with you as the dealer that |'m
willing to purchase the vehicle for - that is the
negotiated price, and it is no |longer the advertised
price.

8:36:40 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS asked at what point the transaction takes
pl ace. He rem nded the commttee that he recently bought a car
in Juneau and paid a $200 doc fee. He said he knows what the
advertised price and negotiated price were - and they were
different prices. However, he said it didn't seem like the
transaction took place until after that.

8:38: 07 AM

MR. SNIFFEN responded that in that situation it sounds |Iike
Representative Ranras negotiated a price for the vehicle and,
during the negotiation, the dealership told himthat price would
i nclude a doc fee. He said HB 383 would not prevent that from
happening. He said if the dealer wants to include a doc fee in
the price of the car, then he needs to negotiate that with the

consuner at the tinme of negotiation. He said, "If you see a car
for $3,000 on the lot, ... that $3,000 would be the advertised
price if it was advertised on the car, if it was in the paper

[or] if you knew it was $3,000 for some reason - ... the

advertised price before you started negotiation."

8:39: 04 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -9- March 23, 2006



CHAI R SEATON asked, "At that point in tinme, that $3,000 has to
i ncl ude the docunentation fee. |s that correct?"

8:39:25 AM

MR. SNI FFEN answered yes, under current |aw. He continued with
hi s exanpl e:

And then, when you start negotiating perhaps a |ower

price, you say, "Wll, I'm not going to give you
$3,000 - 1'Il1 give you $2,500 though,"” and the dealer
says, "Well, I'Il take $2,500 but | have to add a $199
doc fee in there,” and you say, "OCkay." Your consent

to that charge is now part of a negotiated price,
because that was included in the negotiations between
you and the deal er.

What this bill would not allow the dealer to do is to
say, "GOCkay, $2,500, you've got a deal M. Ranras.
Let's go do up the paperwork.”™ And then you sit down

there and start eating the free little mnts on the
table and the dealership comes back wth the
paperwork, and as you said, now you re confused
because the paperwork shows a final price of $2,700.

And you say, "Well, what's this $2,700? | thought we
agreed on $2,500." And the dealer says, "Oh, that's a
doc prep fee. |"m sorry, we have to add that to the

cost of the car."

That's the practice that we're trying to prevent here.
W want the dealers to tell you everything that you're
going to have to pay for the <car during those
negoti ati ons, so when you get to signing the docunents
there aren't these additional fees that are added that
really are nothing nore than just profit.

8:40: 56 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS said that scenario is what happened to
him He said he bought a car for $3,000, he "went in to close,”

and "there was the doc fee." He said, "But | thought we were
still negotiating; nobody was holding a gun to ny head to buy
that car.” He said he had the option to get up and | eave or to

refuse to pay the doc fee.

8:41:10 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 10- March 23, 2006



CHAI R SEATON said the point of the bill is that many consumners
are led to believe that [the doc fee] is a separate charge that
IS necessary to conplete the deal other than the negotiation
with the dealer. He said nobody is saying the doc fee can't be
charged; the bill would just require that there be no hidden
charge that is added l|later after there has been an agreenent
made on the price of the car.

8:41: 55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS responded, "I think that's precisely the
axle that |I'm getting wapped around, which is: \Wat does this
word ' hidden' nean?" He said finding out about the doc fee
happened during his transaction with the car dealer before the
noment that he wote the check. He said until the nonent he
wote the check, he had the opportunity to | eave the deal ership.

CHAI R SEATON asked Representative Ranras:

Your feeling is that the current ... law that we have
- that those docunent fees have to be in the
advertised price - should not be there as well,
because that forces us to include that in the
advertised price as well. | nean, is that where we're
really com ng through here?

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS repli ed, " didn'"t follow vyou M.
Chai rman, but | think so."

8:42: 57 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said he doesn't care if [the doc fee] "cones
before or after,” he just wants it clear to the consuner that it

is pure profit. He stated that he is not opposed to pure
profit; he just wants to see fair and honest practices. He
concluded, "I think many of wus in this room perhaps, have
fallen victimto this practice. | know | have in the past, and

| don't like it."

8:43: 56 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG nentioned an anmendnment to a past bill
that required car repair staff to post a sign if they work on
commi ssi on. He asked M. Sniffen if that requirenent is being
obser ved.

8:45:02 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- March 23, 2006



MR. SNIFFEN said he assunes dealers are conplying, but he has
not heard any conplaints and, thus, has not investigated the
i ssue.

8:45: 34 AM

MR. SNI FFEN shifted focus to the issue of the dealer's reserve,
and he said he wanted to address sone coments nmade during the
| ast hearing of HB 383, relating to requiring car dealers to
di scl ose when they mark up financing, when "in virtually every
other kind of transaction that takes place on the planet you
don't have to do this." He said he doesn't want the conmittee
to be msled "by sone of that information.”" He stated that the
car buying experience is unique; it's one of the only tines that
a person can negotiate a price for a product. He continued:

You've got a situation where you go into a dealership
and there are a bunch of people who sort of ascend on
you right away, and they do this sort of dance wth
you about how you have to go through these hoops to

buy a car. It's ... a very unique transaction that
really isn't conparable to a lot of other kinds of
transactions, which is why | think the disclosure of

the marked up interest rates in the dealer reserve is
i nport ant for this ki nd of transaction t hat
di stinguishes it froma |lot of other transactions.

MR SNIFFEN, in response to a question from Representative
Ranras, said he works for the State of Al aska

8:47:32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS stated that transactions in a variety of
services are unique. He said he thinks M. Sniffen's coments
show a pretty clear bias against the autonobile industry. He
stated, "I appreciate the specific nature of your opinion, but I
could do without the editorializing of the industry."”

8:48:41 AM

CHAI R SEATON stated that he wunderstands where Representative
Ranras is coming from"as far as the State of Alaska," but said
peopl e can offer their opinions through testinony. He initiated
a question for M. Sniffen.

8:49: 21 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- March 23, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG interjected to call a point of order.
He said he has known M. Sniffen professionally for a long tine
and he has the highest reputation. He stated, "It is nost
inmportant that w tnesses before this conmmttee be allowed to
testify freely. He is a professional, and he should be treated
with the appropriate courtesy by the nenbers of this conmttee."

8:49: 56 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS apol ogi zed for possibly stepping over the
l'ine. Nevert hel ess, he said he would |ike people to be carefu
how they characterize industries in Alaska that contribute to
the state's econony.

8: 50: 09 AM

CHAIR SEATON asked M. Sniffen if additional interest s
"al l owabl e for real estate agents or other such sales.”

8:50: 32 AM

MR. SNI FFEN offered his understanding that it is not. He said
real estate agents, brokers, and l|lenders are free to charge
what ever interest rate they choose, but he said he thinks that
when a person consummates a transaction, the interest rate
he/ she pays is up front.

MR. SNIFFEN expressed his appreciation for Representative
Ranras' comments. He apol ogized for seenming to pick on the auto
i ndustry. He said he works closely with that industry and has a
good relationship with it and respect for it. He stated, "I
just wanted to nake sure we were conparing apples to apples, and
oranges to oranges, and sone of the comments in the |last neeting
seemto indicate that that wasn't the case.”

8:51:35 AM

CHAI R SEATON told M. Sniffen that he may add anything el se that
he deens appropriate, and he said the commttee is not taking
[ unbrage] at his testinony.

8:52: 09 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN renmarked that anyone who speaks probably

expresses his/her bias, because everyone is unique. He said he
is a licensed real estate agent. He said there are only two

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 13- March 23, 2006



things that are really negotiated in the United States:
aut onobi | es and houses. He asked if the bill would require that
the doc fee be indicated as pure profit whether it cones before
or after the negotiated price and, if not, whether it shoul d.

8:53: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said he doesn't think that should be done
because he doesn't think it could be done accurately. He
offered further details. He said he runs a restaurant, and if

the price of a burger is $3.99, that isn't $3.99 plus a docunent
fee. He said, "W don't charge a buck for the credit card slip,
even though that only costs us 10 cents.” He continued:

You don't want to do sone sort of accounting thing
where you're trying to determ ne how nmuch of the doc
fee is profit and how much of it is out of pocket
cost. | suspect alnost all of it is profit, and
that's, truthfully, what the car dealer said, but we
don't know if it's 100 percent, or 99 percent, or 97

percent .
8:54:36 AM
CHAIR SEATON said if that was included in the bill he would

probably vote against it, because it is not appropriate to make
a business say what is profit and what is not.

8:55:38 AM

REPRESENTATIVE LYNN reiterated that he believes in full and
honest di scl osur e.

8:56: 14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG directed attention to an anmendnent that
had not been offered but was in the committee packet, [I|abeled
24-1LS1287\ X. 1, Bannister, 3/15/06.] He noted that line 15 [as
nunmbered on Anmendnent X 1], read "from a bank or credit union".
He said that excludes other types of financing, such as through
[ General Motors Acceptance Corporation (GVAC)], and he said he
IS not sure why.

8:57:48 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA explained that when a loan is comng from
the car conpany, the argunent can be nade that the consuner

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- March 23, 2006



expects that sonebody is making sone noney and there is probably
sone rel ationship between the car dealer and the | oan conpany.

9:00: 17 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he doesn't think that he or his
constituents would know t hat.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN concurred.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he would like to get away from
saying who the lending institution is, but having the anmendnent
apply to any lender. He asked Representative Gara if he has any
objection to that.

9:01: 40 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA responded that Representative G uenberg's
proposal is exactly what the bill does now He said he sees no
problem in giving consuners information, which is all the bill
pr oposes. In response to a question from Representative
G uenberg, he said he doesn't have strong feelings one way or
the other regarding whether the aforenentioned anendnent shoul d
be offered. He added that he thinks M. Sniffen has
conmuni cated that it is not necessary.

9:03: 21 AM

JOHN COCK, Legislative Director, Al aska Autonobile Association

testified on behalf of the association in opposition to HB 383.
He stated that there is no difference between GVAC and a bank.
He revealed that the Al aska Autonobile Association is conprised
of 70 new and used car deal erships, 2,400 enployees in the new

car deal erships alone, and an annual payroll in excess of $120
mllion, plus benefits. He noted that nuch of the testinony has
been centered on unfair practices. He said, "I can tell you we

woul dn't be in business for 60 years if we operated in that
manner, nor if any of our nenbers consistently operated in that
manner. The |egal comunity would have us out of business ...."

MR. COOK stated that the association has a close and positive
working relationship with M. Sniffen; however, he said he
respectfully disagrees with M. Sniffen on a couple points. He
said he does not agree that the term "negotiated price" 1is
clear. He said if statute is passed without a clear definition,
the car dealer's will have to live with the consequences and the
| egal community wll have to hash it out. M. Cook said

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- March 23, 2006



deceptive practices are currently prohibited in statute under

the Unfair Trade Practices Act. The Act carries severe fines
and penalties, including possible civil penalties from the
state. Regardi ng doc fees, he stated that not all deal erships
charge them He said in his dealership the doc fee is disclosed
and delineated separately. He said that is the standard
practice of all the nmjor dealerships. He stated that

everything in regard to a vehicle transaction other than the
Division of Mdtor Vehicle (DW) fees is negotiable and "we can

do away with all this [|anguage." However, he stated, "If a
consuner cones to us and has an objection with a doc fee, we
will reduce the ... selling price of the vehicles before we wll
reduce a doc fee." He explained the reason for doing that is
that charging a different doc fee from person to person could be
considered a discrimnatory Ilending practice, which is

prohi bited under a federal regulation: Regulation Z
9:08: 52 AM

CHAI R SEATON said the conmttee had heard testinony from other
car dealers [at the last hearing] stating that the doc fee was
really just profit, and he offered his understanding that M.
Cook is indicating that the doc fee is a flat fee that is
sonmet hing other than just another portion of profit.

9:09: 16 AM
MR. COOK prefaced his clarification by revealing that he is also
a certified public accountant (CPA). He said the doc fee is not

pure profit; it is revenue. He continued:

Qur practice and nost dealers' practice is to charge a

consi stent doc fee. ... Al deal erships charge,
general l vy, the sanme fee to everyone. | t IS
delineated. It is revenue.

9:09: 59 AM

CHAI R SEATON said sone dealers have told the commttee that the
doc fee is negotiable and that seens different from what M.
Cook i s sayi ng.

9:10: 24 AM
MR. COOK explained that it is not different, because where the

negoti ation would take place would be within the vehicle price.
In other words, if the custoner says he/she refuses to pay, for

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 16- March 23, 2006



exanple, a $189 doc fee, the dealer would nost likely keep the
doc fee the sane, but reduce the selling price of the vehicle by
$189. He said the mmjority of the association's nenbership
treats the situation exactly the way that he just descri bed.

9:11: 39 AM

MR. COCK, regarding the dealer reserve, said although he would
term hinmself a sophisticated borrower, he has never had anyone
disclose to him that he nay be able to get a better rate
somewhere el se. Furthernore, he said he has never seen any
i ndustry be required to tell a person that he/she nmay be able to
get a better rate sonmewhere else; therefore, that proposed
provision in the bill seenms to be specifically |ooking at the
car industry. He continued:

| can tell you that nortgage brokers ... are not
originators of paper; they receive fees for selling
nor t gages. O course, ... that industry is not
regul ated by the State of Alaska - federal lending is
not . So, M. Sniffen is correct in that in House
transactions you have the right of rescission and
ot her  things, but federal | aw supersedes state

statute. That doesn't nmke it right, but that is the
reason that that's different.

MR COOK pointed out that dealers of recreational vehicles
(RVs), boats, and snownobiles have the sane deal er agreenents

with banks that car deal ers do. He added, "But we're sitting
here as the only people that are being discussed ... in this
bill." He said the car dealers in Al aska are conpeting agai nst

deal erships all across the country and are held to one of the
hi ghest standards of any industry in the country.

9:14: 48 AM

MR, COK said this bill hearing makes it sound |ike foul play
related to doc fees and deal er reserves is conmmon practice, but
he has never received a conplaint from a consuner regarding
either of those issues, nor has he ever received a consuner
conplaint through M. Sniffen's office regarding these two
I Ssues. He noted that there are seven dealers in Juneau wth
hi m t oday, and none of them have received such conplaints. He
said at the last hearing [Representative Lynn] had asked why
it's necessary to fix all industries before the car industry can
be fi xed. M. Cook said he is trying to figure out where the
probl em is. He said there is one case of a dealer who was new

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- March 23, 2006



to the market from out of state, and that story was publicized
in the Anchorage Daily News. He asked why the legislature feels
the need to fix what isn't broken.

9:16: 28 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested that since all parties
interested in the bill are present, perhaps a definition of
"negotiated price" could be formul at ed.

9:17: 38 AM

MR COOK said he is not an attorney and does not have the
ability to cone up with a legal definition of the term He
reported that his legal council has told himthat he thinks the
termis too vague. He said he would rather sonething come from
the other parties and then the he would be willing to |ook at
it.

9:18: 35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested that if M. Cook thinks there
should be a definition, he should take the issue up in the next
committee of referral, because the House State Affairs Standing
Commttee can't [address the issue] "on the fly."

REPRESENTATI VE CGCRUENBERG said he wuld like to know if a
violation of the bill would be a violation of the Unfair Trade
Practi ces Act.

9:20: 21 AM

MR. SNI FFEN answered yes. He said AS 45.25.400 addresses the
regul ati on of dealer practices. He stated, "Any violation of
that 400 section of this statute is also a consunmer protection
violation."

9:20:41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said his constituents may not be the
nost sophisticated, and he noted that nmany of them are not high

wage earners and English is their second |anguage. He said,
“"Maybe they do need to be told up front that the deal really is
negoti able. ™ He asked M. Cook, "Wuld your industry support

such a di scl osure?"

9:21: 57 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- March 23, 2006



MR. COK said he thinks "it's sonmething that's already there.”
He said that he would have no problem putting up a sign telling
custoners that they can negotiate, but said he thinks they do
t hat al r eady.

9:22:47 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d he woul d l'ike to ask
Representative Gara the sane question.

9:23:11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN, in response to a statenent previously made
by M. Cook, said the legislature is not picking on one
industry; it is sinmply focusing on one issue at a tinme. He said
he understands that negotiating is done when people buy
vehicles, but he wants to know "what is truly negotiable.” He
said he didn't previously know that a doc fee was negotiabl e,
whet her by being |owered, or buy having the vehicle price
| oner ed i nstead. He asked, "What is the problem with full and
public disclosure on what is and is not the actual thing we're
trying to buy, which in your case is an autonobil e?"

9: 24: 57 AM
MR COOK reiterated that he believes in full disclosure and
provides it. He reenphasized the lack of problens that the car

deal ershi ps have experienced in this regard, which is the reason
t hat the association does not support the bill.

9:25:58 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked M. Sniffen how often he gets conplaints on
the issues raised in the bill

9:26: 21 AM

MR. SNIFFEN responded that although he cannot discuss the
conplaints in any detail because of confidentiality statutes, in
a broad sense, M. Cook is right that there are not a lot of
witten conplaints about the doc fee issue. He stated his
belief that the reason there are not a lot of conplaints is
specifically because consuners don't understand that it's
sonething that they could conplain about. He said he is
currently involved in a case where the departnment has audited
some files of dealerships and, in nearly every transaction

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- March 23, 2006



| ooked at so far, has found a doc fee that was charged
i nappropriately. He added, "W had no conplaints about those
transactions either." In response to a question from Chair
Seaton, he confirmed that [regarding these cases], the doc fees
charged were added on above the advertised price.

9:27: 45 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER seconded M. Sniffen's coment that the

reason people don't make the conplaints is that they are
unawar e.

9:28: 33 AM

MR. COOK noted that the case to which M. Sniffen referred
relates to advertised price. He rem nded the commttee that
advertised prices are policed by M. Sniffen's office
vi gorousl y. He reiterated that the definition of negotiated
price is unknown. He asked, "If you do not have a doc fee in
one place and you try to put it in another or disclose it as
being a mandatory fee, ... wouldn't that already be considered a

deceptive practice, and isn't that covered under statutes
currently on the books?"

9: 29: 39 AM
CHAI R SEATON st at ed:

| want to nmke sure we don't get anybody into hot
water anywhere here; ... everybody realize what
they're putting on the record. | nmean, if we're into
a situation where we're saying that we're going to be
putting these uniformy across all cars because we
mght run into federal |aw prohibitions, it's alnost
as if we're saying those charges are a separate charge

that nust be maintained. And if what we're saying
under state law - ... there is no true separate charge
- we want to nmake sure we don't get -- | just want to

put everybody under awareness that we don't want to
have people commit thenselves to statements that they
don't want in the future.

9: 30: 26 AM

MR SNIFFEN said M. Cook raises a good point; a Ilot of
practices that are being discussed in the bill could already be
illegal under Alaska's Consuner Protection Act. He said it is

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- March 23, 2006



not illegal for car dealers to have a "hol dback”; it is illega
for them to engage in any kind of deception that would have
m sl ead the consuner into believing he/she was getting financing
from the bank, when in fact that wasn't the true financing from
the bank. He illustrated that point as follows:

Let's say you go to a dealer and you say, "Wuat can

you do for me on this car?" And the deal er says,
"Well, the best I can do for you is 5 percent." The
deal er doesn't say, "The best the bank can give you is
5 percent"; the dealer says, "The best | can give you
is 5 percent.” [It's a ] very subtle difference, but
very inportant. If the dealer said, "WlIl the best
the bank will do for us is 5 percent,” when in fact

the bank is giving the dealer a 4 percent rate and
[the dealer is] holding back that 1 percent, well
that's just fraud - that is deception - and it is
illegal under our Consumer Protection Act.

MR. SNIFFEN said a lot of consunmers nay not understand that
distinction when they are negotiating for the purchase of a new
vehicle, which M. Sniffen said is a significant event for nost
people. He said, "So, it really is a matter of trying to prove
what the dealer said, what the consuner thought, and you get in
front of a court and it's a he said/she said kind of thing."
M. Sniffen expressed his wish that all dealers were as upfront
and honest as M. Cook so that these problens would not exist at
all, but he said that is not the case. He concl uded:

So, yes they could be unlawful under our Act. It's
difficult to prove that they are. And it would renove
that uncertainty if we had our statute that said

you can do it, but if you do it you have to disclose
it ... clearly.

9:33:45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG referred to a handwitten amendnent in
the comm ttee packet, which would change the bill as foll ows:

On page 1, line 8:
Between "price" and ","

Insert ", including the price stated at any point
during the negotiation or transaction"

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- March 23, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked M. Cook and M. Sniffen if "that
woul d at | east put some kind of a definition on the record.”

9: 35: 05 AM

MR. COCK said he cannot speak on behalf of the association on
this matter, but he personally does not |like the wording and
woul d still be opposed to the bill.

9:35:41 AM

CHAI R SEATON cl osed public testinony.

9: 36: 06 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER suggested the previously stated amendnent
shoul d say, "including the price stated at any point and agreed
or accepted", because she indicated that the transaction is not
conplete until the dealer accepts the anount offered by the
consuner.

9:36: 15 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d he shares that concern
9:36:24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA stated that "negotiated price" never becane
an issue until the legislature passed a bill in 2002 banni ng doc
fees. He said as a response to that bill, the car industry said,
"Oh, you used the advertised price, so we're going to charge the
doc fee in the negotiated price." He said the industry well
knew what the negotiated price was; "they were the ones that
created the issue." He stated, "Wiat we're trying to do is say
at no point during the process may you insert a doc fee - in
your advertisenent, when you negotiate with the consuner -
never." Representative Gara said there are only two kinds of
prices: the advertised price and the negotiated pri ce.

9:37:56 AM

CHAI R SEATON agreed that the wording in the bill is sufficient.
He sai d:

The only question is, "Can you add in additional fees that

aren't in the advertised price after you go to
negoti ations?" And that's what this bill says is that you

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- March 23, 2006



are working from an advertised price, and anything that's
included in the advertised price is included in
negoti ati ons.

9: 38: 59 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he would not offer the anmendnent.

Regardi ng additional charges, he asked Representative Gara where
| anguage addressing themwould go in the bill.

9: 39: 27 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GARA suggested inserting "charges,"” between
"surcharges,"” and "and other" on page 1, line 12. I n response

to a followup question from Representative Guenberg, he said
he woul d support such an anmendnent.

9:39:51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved Conceptual Amendnent 1, as
fol | ows:

On page 1, line 8:

Bet ween "surcharges,” and "and ot her"
| nsert "charges,"

CHAIR SEATON asked if there was any objection to Conceptual
Amendrent 1. There being none, it was so ordered.

9:40: 49 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG expl ai ned that he is trying to cut down
on "wiggle roont in the bill. He directed attention to page 2,
line 24, and expressed concern about the word "arranges". [ Page
2, lines 23-25 read as foll ows:

(f) I'n addition to the other requirenments of
this section, if a notor vehicle dealer arranges
financing for a proposed buyer, the dealer shal
disclose in witing and before the sale is finalized

9:41: 50 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GARA, in response to Representative G uenberg,

suggested inserting "or offers financing to a proposed buyer” in
t hat | anguage. In response to a foll owup question, he said he

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 23- March 23, 2006



woul d support such an anendnment and would run it by M. Sniffen
before the bill reaches the House fl oor.

9:43: 06 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved Conceptual Amendnent 2, as
fol | ows:

On page 2, line 24:
Fol | owi ng "proposed buyer, "
Insert "or offers financing to a proposed buyer,"

CHAI R SEATON asked if there was any objection to Conceptual
Amendnent 2. There being none, it was so ordered.

9:44: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said he thinks the fact that the bill has
been heard in two |l engthy neetings by the conmttee and is stil
uncl ear shows that the plight of the new car buyer is remarkable
and speaks to the necessity of the bill.

9:46: 14 AM

MR. SNIFFEN, in response to a question from Chair Seaton, said
he has no objection to the adopted Conceptual Amendnent 2.

9:46: 24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER opined that although there my be
el ements that can be inproved upon, the conmttee has done its
best on what is a good bill. She said she views the bill as
addressing consunmer protection and in no way would interfere
wth a dealer's right to be in business and earn a profit; it is
about obligations for disclosure that would allow consuners to
make i nfornmed deci sions.

9:46: 54 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER noved to report CSHB 383(TRA), as
anended, out of commttee with individual recomendati ons.

9:47:22 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS obj ect ed. He opined that HB 383 is a bad
bill that hanpers conmerce.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- March 23, 2006



9:47:45 AM

A roll call vote was taken. Representatives Gardner, G uenberg,
Lynn, and Seaton voted in favor of noving CSHB 383(TRA), as
anended, out of conmttee wth individual recomendations.
Representative Ranras voted against it. Therefore, CSHB
383(STA) was reported out of the House State Affairs Standing
Commttee by a vote of 4-1.

SB 86- STATE/ MUNI LI ABILITY FOR ATTORNEY FEES

9:48: 36 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that the last order of business was CS
FOR SENATE BILL NO 86(CRA)(efd fld), "An Act relating to the
liability of the state and nunicipalities for attorney fees in
certain civil actions and appeals.”

9:49: 45 AM

CRAIG TILLERY, Deputy Attorney General, Cvil Dvision, Ofice
of the Attorney General, Departnment of Law, introduced SB 86 on
behal f of the Senate Rules Committee, sponsor by request of the
governor. He paraphrased his witten testinony, as foll ows:

Since territorial days, Alaska has had a statutory
policy of requiring a losing party in nost civil cases
to pay a portion of the prevailing party’'s attorney
f ees. Soon after statehood, this policy was enbodi ed
in Cvil Rule 82 by the Alaska Suprene Court pursuant
to a legislative del egation.

SB 86 addresses the use of state and nunicipal funds
to subsidize certain types of [litigation through
awards of attorney fees to prevailing parties that are
hi gher than the partial fees that are the norm in
Al aska. The legislation wuld linmt those enhanced
awards to instances in which the |egislature has nade
the policy judgnent to provide for them by statute.

Enhanced fee awards against state and nunicipa
governnents, which J[are] the anount above nornal
conpensation, represent a significant inpact on the
state treasury and, on a nore irregular basis, on

muni ci pal  funds. Odinarily, the basis for these
enhanced awards has been the judicially created public
interest litigant policy, whereby selected litigants,

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 25- March 23, 2006



suing to advance ends deenmed by the court to reflect
strong public policies, are granted full fees as a
subsidy fromthe state treasury.

For the state alone, over last 10 or so years, this
has averaged about $600,000 per year above norma
conpensat i on.

SB 86 would address this by creating a new provision
in a chapter of title 9 that is devoted to imunities.
It relies on t he | egi slature’s constitutional
authorities to regulate suits against the state and to
confer immunities on the state and nunicipalities, as
well as on the doctrine of sovereign inmunity. I t
sets limts on liability that are simlar and
essentially identical to those limts found in GCvil
Rule 82 that courts have found for years to represent
fair partial conpensation to a prevailing party.

The limts do not apply to condemation proceedi ngs -
and that's because paynent of full attorney fees in a
condemmati on pr oceedi ng IS a constitutional
requirenent - or in instances where the legislature
has provided for the enhanced fee awards, for exanple,
in a fair business practices-type case. There is also
an exception allowing courts to enhance attorney fees
as a sanction for msconduct by a party or by counsel.

The inmunity created by SB 86 is intended to do two
things: One, it will save the state significant noney
each year, but, nost inportantly what it does, is to
reassert legislative control over state expenditures
to encourage litigation on public concerns, based on
policy priorities that are determned by the
| egi sl ature.

MR. TILLERY said the proposed |egislation was introduced in 2005
and has cone across to the House fromthe Senate. He noted that
there is also a conpanion House bill that is in the House State
Affairs Standing Comm ttee.

9:53: 09 AM

MR. TILLERY said since the bill was introduced, a couple cases
of relevance have occurred: the ACLU case and the Bachner case.
He said what these cases tend to denonstrate is "the creeping
nature of the court's award of attorney fees against

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- March 23, 2006



governments, essentially headed towards what appears to be full
liability any tinme that the governnent would lose.” Initially,
he said, public interest Ilitigant doctrine came about as a
shield to prevent public interest litigants from having to pay
attorney fees under GCvil Rule 82. Later, however, the idea of
a public interest litigant doctrine as a sword - where "they
were entitled to enhanced fees" - was put into the court's
doctrine, he said. Subsequently, the court expanded that
doctrine to say, "You not only get fees for ... those itens that
you win, but if you win on anything, you get full fees ... for
... all of your work on the case." M. Tillery indicated that
was the [Dansereau v. U ner 955 P.2d 916] decision. He said the
court then expanded that decision to say, "WlIl, you don't
actually have to win if you bring the case and the state or the
government reacts in such a way that suggests that you were the
catal yst for that action, then you can get your full fee."

MR. TILLERY said one of the factors that has been the nost
effective in making any public litigant nake sense is the fact
that "you had to show that it was not an independent,
sufficient, economc incentive to bring the case.” He said the
ACLU case dealt wth benefits for state enployees, and the court
was faced with the request that "they be accorded public
interest litigant status.” He conti nued:

There the court stated that certainly "the plaintiffs
below contended that they were denied valuable
benefits. W have inplicitly recognized the benefits
to which they're entitled are economcally valuable.”
Nonet hel ess, the court went on to find that it was not
a sufficient economc incentive, for the reason that
the plaintiffs mght change their domestic status in
the future, before they actually got a benefit, or
they mght cease to work for the state. I n essence,
the court has said, "If you can imgine a contingency
by which you will not get this benefit, then you don't
have a sufficient economc incentive." In effect,
that nmeans that public interest litigant status would
be accorded in all prospective litigation against the
state and nunicipalities. That concern was hei ghtened
for us shortly after that in procurenent case, where
the losing bidder in a procurenent sued and was

afforded public interest Ilitigant status, again, on
the assunption, "Well, nmaybe [we'll] get the bid next
time if ... it is tossed out."

9:56: 15 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -27- March 23, 2006



CHAI R SEATON surm sed, "The procurenent case was then basically
challenging the procedures that were used to go through a
bi ddi ng process but didn't actually change the award of the bid.
Is that the rational e behind that, or not?"

9:56: 26 AM

MR. TILLERY answered, "It challenged a procurenent ... for an
office building, and it tossed out the procurenent and said you
have to go back and rebid."

9:56:40 AM

CHAIR SEATON concluded, "So, ... the ~court found faulty
procedures that were followed by the state or a nunicipality,
but it didn't actually award a bid to the prevailing party."

9:57: 07 AM

MR. TILLERY responded, "No, they have to go back and go through
it." He added, "And by the way, ... that was a superior court
case; the first one |I nmentioned was a suprene court decision."

9:57: 24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if the superior court opinion was
appeal ed.

9:57:34 AM

MR. TILLERY said it will be appeal ed. In response to a follow
up question from Representative Guenberg, he said he would
provide the "slip opinion nunber.” M. Tillery sunmarized that
the bill attenpts to do two things: control the fiscal inpact
on the state and nunicipalities, and return to the |egislature
the right to set the policies as to when litigation will be
subsi di zed. He said it is the view of the adm nistration that

it is the legislature that should do that, not the court system

9:59: 05 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked, "Did we put an exenption exception in so
that if there was a constitutional challenge - if the basis of
the challenge was based on constitutional grounds - then those

f ees woul d be awar ded?"

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 28- March 23, 2006



9:59: 34 AM

MR,  TILLERY answered that four or five years ago, the
| egislature introduced House Bill 145, which included a
provision that "a party would be entitled to full fees in a
constitutional case if they didn't have independent economc
i ncentive." He said House Bill 145 would be "an exception to
this bill.” He noted that [House Bill 145] was struck down by
the [Al aska] Superior Court and is currently being considered by
the [ Al aska] Suprene Court.

10: 00: 13 AM

CHAIR SEATON spoke of a case in 2002 that <challenged
reapportionnent under constitutional grounds and resulted in one
of the two largest attorney fees paid by the state in a public
interest litigant case. He nentioned an anount of $2 mllion

He asked if any analysis has been done related to how nany
public interest litigant fees have been granted in the past
based on constitutional grounds and whether there would be a
reduction in attorney fees paid by the state in public interest
litigant cases should the bill pass.

10: 01: 37 AM

MR. TILLERY said he has not. He said to do so would involve
goi ng back and reading the decisions, which would be difficult.
He expl ai ned, "Because the other thing that the bill does is it
deals with the Dansereau problem by providing that you'd only
get them on the actual clains that you raise that were on
constitutional grounds. ... That's what [House Bill] 145 did
also." He offered an exanple as foll ows:

If you were to have ... an apportionnent, or whatever,
and you raised four grounds - two of t hem
constitutional [and] two of them statutory - and you
only won on the constitutional ground, then you would
only get your fees for that portion.

10: 02: 23 AM

CHAI R SEATON suggested that the year 2002 would readily show
that "alnost all of it was based on the challenge by a ...
political party to the redistricting based on a constitutional
chall enge."” He asked if that is correct.

10: 02: 47 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 29- March 23, 2006



MR. TILLERY replied that he is not famliar with that case;
however, he offered his believe that redistricting has sone
statutory elenents to it.

10: 02: 57 AM

RANDY RUARO Assistant Attorney Ceneral & Legislative Liaison,
Legislation & Regulations Section, Cvil Dvision (Juneau),
Department of Law, confirmed, "There are statutes on it."

10: 03: 19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG directed attention to page [6] of 8 on
t he handout entitled, "Legislative Research Report February 17,
2006, Report Nunber 06.097" [included in the commttee packet].

He pointed out the O Callaghan v. Coghill case listed on the
page and revealed that that was his case, which he won. He
stated, "I do have a conflict of interest, having fromtine to

tinme taken these cases, and | guess | should ask to be excused
fromparticipating ...."

10: 03: 48 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN stated his objection.

10: 03: 58 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG, in response to a question from Chair
Seaton, confirmed that the O Callaghan v. Coghill case was on
constitutional grounds. He added that subsequently the U S.

Suprene Court reversed that decision.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said if a public interest [|itigant
| oses, attorney fees cannot be awarded against that litigant.
He offered his understanding that that is the current state of
the | aw

MR. TILLERY responded that actually the |egislature essentially
abol i shed the public interest doctrine, "as the court had done,"
t hrough House Bill 145. In response to a followup question
from Representative Guenberg, he confirnmed that that doctrine
was ruled unconstitutional by the superior court, but is the
current state of law until the suprene court rules on it.

10: 06: 29 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 30- March 23, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG said, "If vyou wn, you get ful
attorney's fees under the current state of the l[aw " He added
that that is both at the trial court |evel and on appeal. He
of fered further details.

10: 07: 00 AM

MR. TILLERY confirnmed that Representative G uenberg's statenents
were correct.

10: 07: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said cases where there is a noney
judgnent are not public interest cases, but are just run of the
mill civil lawsuits.

MR TILLERY said that's correct.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG proffered that normally under Rule 82,
if it is a nonnoney judgnent, the attorney gets a percentage of
hi s/ her actual attorney fees. He offered his understanding that
the amount is 20 percent if the case does not go to trial and 30
percent if the case goes to trial and is won.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG said on appeal the situation is quite
different. He continued:

The suprene court, on an appeal, is under an appellate
rule, not Rule 82, and the appellate rule gives tota
di scretion to the suprene court. ... They award very
few attorney fees to anybody in a nonpublic interest
case; ... it's generally sonmewhere between $500 and
$1,000 .... So, it's alnost a token, because it's a
ot nore expenses to take an appeal .... They
determ ne whether you win an appeal as an appellate.
Cenerally, if you prevail on a single issue, they

woul d hold you as a prevailing party. They m ght not
award you the full $1,000 - you might only get half of
it, or sonething like that.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG directed attention to page 2, l|lines 22-
24, which read as foll ows:

(3) in an appeal in which the

prevailing party does not recover a noney judgnent, 20
percent of the prevailing party's reasonable actual

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 31- March 23, 2006



attorney fees that were necessarily incurred in
litigating issues upon which the party prevail ed.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG expl ai ned:

In an appeal now, if you're a prevailing party - even
against the state - in an injunction or a declaratory
j udgnment action, you'd only get sonmething |ess than
$1,000, which is far less than 20 percent. So, this,

|  believe, M. Tillery, ... mght significantly
increase the anmobunt a prevailing party would get in a
run-of -the-m Il declaratory judgnent appeal against
t he state.

A typical appeal mght cost $8-10,000 in attorney fees
[for] actual tine. ... Let's say there's a mne and
they' ve closed the road, and you want an injunction to
require the state to change their admnistrative
decision so the road to the mne goes open. [You] pay

$10,000 [and] you win on the appeal. Now you woul d
only get $1,000 against the state, but you' ve spent
ten grand in your ... successful appeal. Under this,

you doubl e the anmount you'd get against the state, .
which | would support, by the way. You mght actually
find prevailing appellate in ... nonnoney judgnent
cases getting a higher anmobunt against the state than
you do under the current appellate rule.

10:11: 17 AM

MR. TILLERY responded to Representative Guenberg's statenents
by saying, "This wouldn't affect that; this is only ... a cap on
what the state will pay.” He added that in cases where it would

have given a thousand dollars, the supreme court presumably wl|
continue to give a thousand doll ars. He said, "Wat this would

deal with was the situation where they ... mght provide for
full fees.”

10: 11: 45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG asked M. Tillery if the intent of the
bill is not to change court rules.

10: 12: 10 AM

MR. TILLERY responded:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 32- March 23, 2006



[What] it basically finds is a matter of sovereign
immunity - that the state will not be liable for nore
than this anount. Then the amounts that it has in
here, as |I'msure you' ve noted, mrror Cvil Rule 82.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said, "Except it doesn't mrror the
appellate rule in the case |I'mtal king about."

MR. TILLERY nentioned Appellate Rule 508. He said, "Courts have

been ... a Ilittle bit all over the board, but the nornal
practice is to, by analogy, apply Cvil Rule 82 standards ... to
adm ni strative appeals.” He added, "And 508 applies to both of
t hose. "

10: 13: 07 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked, "So, you're saying that in
adm nistrative appeals they apply Rule 82 both at the superior
court and the suprene [court]?"

10: 13: 20 AM

MR. TILLERY answered not on the supreme court; it would nore
typically give the $1,000, except in the case of public interest
[itigants. He explained, "This would sinply set a cap on

l[iability; it wouldn't change the court's normal practice.”

10: 13: 40 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked Representative Guenberg to neet with the
Ofice of the Attorney General on "these points that are really
somewhat off the bill." He asked M. Tillery if public interest
l[itigants have to win on the main issue, or if they can win on
sonme small subsidiary issue and receive full attorney fees as if
having won the main issue. He nentioned Hillmn v. Nationw de.

10: 14: 59 AM

MR. TILLERY replied that under Dansereau "you don't have to be
the primary prevailing party.” He said in that case, the court
awarded full fees, even though the party won on only one of its
three cl ai ns. He offered a couple other exanples in: State v.
Alaska Civil Liberties Union - a 1999 case, and another 1999
case involving the Cook Inlet areaw de | ease sale.

10:17:49 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 33- March 23, 2006



SCOTT A. BRANDT-ERI CHSEN, Attorney at Law, Ketchikan Gateway
Borough, said he is testifying on behalf of hinmself, using his
18-year experience in litigation and advice giving. He
indicated that although it would nake his job nore frustrating
if SB 8 "did away with the shield presented by the public

interest litigant status,” he thinks the way the bill 1is
structured in "just doing away with the sword aspect” is a
reasonabl e conprom se. He told the conmttee that in his

experience representing nmunicipalities he has had six to seven
cases over the years that have involved public interest litigant
I Ssues.

MR. BRANDT- ERI CHSEN described one case involving a two-way
| awsui t . He said, "W were sitting in the mddle with public
interest litigants on both sides, assured that we would lose to
at | east one of them and have to pay full attorney fees with no
prospect of getting our fees covered.”" He stated, "Wile that's
an unusual case, the situation of facing litigation over an
issue which may be of mnor inportance to the entity, but of
significant concern in terns of the financial risk to the
comunity involved, ...is a concern that I wuld like to see
addr essed. " M. Brandt-Erichsen opined that SB 86 addresses
this concern. He continued:

The public interest attorney [fee] is not a court rule
as it is now, and so it doesn't require an anendnent
to a court rule to achieve the things that this bil

is seeking to achieve. The changes in this bill |1
don't believe would create a sufficient disincentive
to public interest Ilitigants to keep them from
chal l enging governnental actions which they believe
were taken inproperly. | think we'll see a conparable
nunber of challenges in the future if this bill is
adopted, but the stakes for those challenges, for
muni cipalities and for the state, wll not be as
| opsi ded.
10: 23: 03 AM

MR. BRANDT-ERICHSEN, in response to a question from Chair
Seat on, st at ed:

There are occasionally issues where ... you realize
there's a significant risk of |litigation over the
validity of the provision because there is a party
t hat is either phi |l osophically or econonical ly
notivated to challenge it. ... There's always a

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 34- March 23, 2006



certain level of care, but the level of care that you
take to try to ensure that you have covered al
possibilities to avoid successful l[itigation by
sonmeone challenging the legislation or regulation is
probably higher in those instances.

These public interest litigant cases however - .
only about half of the ones that |'ve had have cone up
in the context of political issues, regulatory type,
or law changes. Half of the ones that | have
encount er ed have arisen out of adm ni strative
di scharge of statutory duties, for exanple, the
muni ci pal clerk being charged with processing recall

petitions. There are specific duties that the clerk
is charged with carrying out, and soneone chall enging
how those duties were carried out isn't really

chal l enging legislation so nuch as that the action was
not taken consistent with what the rul es are.

10: 24: 59 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked if there has been any hei ghtened awareness or
execution of those duties knowing that there could be public

interest litigant challenges if the duties are not properly
execut ed.

10: 25: 46 AM

MR. BRANDT- ERI CHSEN answered yes. He relayed that in nost of
the instances where public interest litigation develops, it
tends to be in areas where there is certain controversy, for
exanple, tinber sales, recall issues, election contests, or
certain |egislation. He said the people who are not pleased
with the way a particular policy issue was handled or with the
decision that was made by an administrative official will 1ook

for anything they can find to try to get that decision reversed.
He concluded, "And so, regardless of how careful you are, it
will not prevent them from going to court to try and get it
overturned anyway."

10: 27:15 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG recalled that M. Brandt-Erichsen had
testified that SB 86 1is designed to change certain court
interpretations, thus, the court rule does not need to be
anended. He said, "W find that quite often what we're dealing
W th IS | egi sl ation desi gned to nodi fy or reverse

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 35- March 23, 2006



interpretations, say, of statutes. And the way the |egislature
works, if you're doing that, you anend the statute. And it's
the sane with a court rule; | don't see any difference." He
asked M. Brandt-Eri chsen what basis he had for t he
af orenenti oned st at enment.

10: 28: 16 AM

MR. BRANDT- ERI CHSEN cl arified that he had neant that SB 86 woul d
change a court interpretation; however, that interpretation "has
not been reduced to a rule in one of the court rules.” He
expl ai ned, "The concept of public interest litigants and the way
fees are awarded in public interest litigant cases is a
construction of court decisions, rather than a rule, such as
Rul e 82. And so, while this legislation would have an
interaction with prior court decisions, it does not change the
court rules thenselves."

10: 29: 07 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he thinks that is an issue that
shoul d be exam ned, because normally the attorney fee provisions
are an interpretation of the court rules.

10: 30: 43 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he would like to know if M.
Tillery and M. Brandt-Erichsen have opinions regardi ng whether
a two-thirds vote or only a mpjority vote under the court's
interpretive power would be necessary should the court rules be
nmodi fi ed.

10: 31: 05 AM

[ SB 86 was heard and hel d. ]
ADJ OURNMENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at
10: 31: 37 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 36- March 23, 2006



